1981

Lloydona Peters Enterprises, Inc. v. Dale M. Dorius and Deloris P. Dorius : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action by the Plaintiff-Appellant corporation through its president to protect and preserve corporate assets.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The Lower Court held that the president of the corporation was not entitled to bring this action on behalf of the corporation and dismissed the case without a hearing on the merits.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiff-Appellant seeks reversal of the lower Courts judgment of dismissal and a remand of this matter to the lower Court for adjudication on the merits.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Plaintiff-Appellant corporation is owned equally by four sisters, one of whom is the Defendant Deloris P. Dorius. (R. 18). Currently, the four sisters are deadlocked in groups of two as to whether or not a corporate resolution authorizing the Defendant Deloris P. Dorius, Secretary of the Corporation, and her husband, the Defendant Dale M. Dorius, to purchase property purchased jointly by the Plaintiff-Appellant corporation and the Defendants should be passed. (R. 63). Reconciliation of the two groups of sisters on this matter did not, and does not now, appear imminent. (R. 63). The title to the property, though purchased jointly, continues to be held by the Defendants-Respondents in spite of the Plaintiff-Appellant corporation's repeated request to have the Defendant-Respondents deliver it over. (R. 63).

In view of the deadlock between the four members of the board of directors as to the sale of the property and the fact that the title to the property is still in the possession of the Defendants-Respondents, the president of the corporation, Jean P. Hull instituted this action on behalf of the corporation to preserve and protect its interest in the above-mentioned property. Defendants-Respondents responded to this suit by

moving the lower Court to dismiss this action on grounds, inter alia, that the president was not empowered to bring this suit in behalf of the corporation. The Court below, despite Utah case law directly to the contrary, allowed the Defendants-Respondents' Motion to Dismiss holding that the president of the corporation was not authorized to bring this action. It is from the lower Courts ruling and judgment on this Motion that the Plaintiff-Appellant appeals.

ARGUMENT

- I. THE LOWER COURT'S FAILURE TO FOLLOW KAMAS SECURITIES CO. VS. TAYLOR, 226 P.2d 111 (Utah 1950) RESULTS IN ERROR AT LAW REQUIRING REVERSAL OF THE JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL ENTERED BELOW.

The holding of Kamas Securities Co. vs. Taylor, 226 P.2d 111 (Utah 1950) is applicable to the present case and controlling on these facts.

In the Kamas Securities case the Plaintiff corporation, through its president, sued its secretary for delivering to unauthorized individuals collateral which the corporation held on a note due it. One of the grounds that the Defendant raised to defend the claim was that the president was not capable of bringing the action without a resolution from the Board of Directors. The Court rejected that argument. It stated:

" It is true that there was no resolution of the Board of Directors directing such suit to be filed, but an executive officer is not required to wait for formal resolution of the directors to perform his official duties to preserve the assets of the corporation or to prevent their disipation." 226 P.2d at 115 (emphasis added) .

Thus, in a corporate setting where a loss of corporate assets is at stake, it is not only proper for the president to take legal action to preserve the assets, it is one of his "official duties." This is precisely what has occurred in Lloydona.

The pertinent minutes of the corporate meetings all show that there is a clear dispute as to the sale arrangement of the property which was jointly purchased by the Plaintiff-Appellant and the Defendants-Respondents. The October 17, 1978 minutes, upon which Defendants-Respondents have relied to show that a sale was consummated (R.35), do state that a sale to the Defendants-Respondents is contemplated. They also state clearly and explicitly that the sale is still contingent upon an agreement as to the price. The whole of the minutes of that meeting that pertain to the matter in question, as reproduced below, clearly show this state of facts.

" The law office will be paid for in November 1978. The original purchase price was \$19,000.00. Lloydona paid \$2,500.00 down on it as did Deloris and Dale. Deloris also paid \$500.00 for closing costs from her personal money. The Dorius' to buy Lloydona's portion of the law office. Dale has arranged for a current and independent appraisal through Miller Realty in Brigham and Jean will arrange for an appraisal through Realtor in Ogden. Monthly payment for the office has been \$240.35. The papers concerning the financial agreements between Lloydona and the Dorius's are in escrow until final payment. Stockholders will receive a copy of the agreement when the final payment has been made and the Dorius's have received the papers from escrow. The building was purchased in December 1971. After the appraisals have been completed Jean, Gay and Deloris will meet with Dale and decide on a price. They will then contact Joy and confer with her before a final decision is made." (R. 38) (emphasis added).

The Defendants-Respondents also relied on the minutes from the corporations annual meeting of January 30, 1979 to claim there was a clear corporate resolution consummating the sale. (R. 35). Again, a reading of the minutes, rather than showing the acceptance of a corporate resolution, demonstrates with clarity the deadlock pitting two sisters against two sisters. The whole of these minutes, with pertinent points underlined, states:

" Office Building - Jean and Joy requested that the copies of the original contract to purchase the office building be clarified and given to members of Lloydona. A lengthy discussion ensued. There was a lengthy discussion as to the recent appraisals obtained for the building, especially by Bruce Christensen. Gay proposed that unless there is a majority vote against, that we accept the \$14,000.00 offer made by Dale Dorius to purchase Lloydona's interest in the office building. It was seconded by Deloris. Two for, two against. Deloris clarified that it was not the intent of the parties involved in the purchase of the building to sell the office building to a third party. All were in agreement to this.

Jean proposed that a clarification of the paper work from escrow be made and Joy seconded this proposal. Two for, two abstention. Gay moved that the Christensen appraisal be accepted as a valid appraisal and Deloris seconded it. It was thereafter agreed that it was a valid appraisal by all present." (R. 42) (emphasis added).

As the minutes state, two were "for" and two were "against" the proposal to sell the property. The deadlock is clear.

Defendants-Respondents have also sought to rely upon the last two sentences of the above quote in minutes stating that there was a unanimous vote as to the validity of the appraisal, to show that there was an agreement to sell on those terms. The minutes speak for themselves. The proposal was that

" the Christensen appraisal be accepted as a valid appraisal." (R. 42). Thus, there was no agreement and approval as to the sale of the property, only to the validity of the appraisal. The decision to sell, was deadlocked in sets of two.

Further evidence that there was a deadlock between the groups of sisters comes from the corporate minutes of November 5, 1979. (R. 63). At that meeting the previously quoted January 1979 minutes were amended and approved as amended. The amendments clearly reflect the split of two deadlocked groups of sisters.

" Paragraph 5 - Office Building Jean stated that Gay's Motion was not a fair Motion. Joy and Jean stated that \$14,000.00 is not acceptable and they feel the transaction is not complete or settled. Joy and Jean feel that Lloydona should continue to pay on the office expenses. Gay and Deloris agree that the \$14,000.00 should and has been accepted for the office building and feel of the transaction has been and is concluded. Jean stated that she called all of us regarding the original purchase of the office building and Gay does not recall being contacted as she was in Peru at the time. No one went through the steps of overseeing the original paper work and signing the same on behalf of the corporation." (R. 63) (emphasis added).

Thus, the facts in the present case, as demonstrated by the pertinent corporate minutes, are that two groups of sisters are deadlocked as to whether corporate property should be sold or retained. The result of the deadlock has been the inability of the corporation to act while the title to the corporation's interest in the aforementioned property remains in the possession of the Defendants-Respondents, a fact which these Defendants-Respondents neither dispute nor deny. In the face of this

corporate inability to act the corporate president has filed this suit to compel the return of the corporation's one-half interest in the aforementioned property and thus preserve the corporation's assets. Such a fact situation is precisely what the Kamas Securities case was intended to cover. For failure to follow this precedent, the lower Court's Judgment of Dismissal should be reversed as a matter of law with a remand for a decision on the merits.

II. THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN THAT THE ARGUMENTS UPON WHICH IT COULD HAVE RELIED FOR ITS JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL WERE INSUFFICIENT TO JUSTIFY DEPARTURE FROM THE KAMAS SECURITIES HOLDING.

The substance of the Ruling of the lower Court in granting Defendants-Respondents' Motion to Dismiss states in toto:

Based on the Pleadings, Memoranda, and Affidavits on file herein, I find that the control and management of the Plaintiff corporation is in the directors, and they alone may authorize the institution of litigation. That the president thereof does not have the implied power or the inherent power to institute this litigation in the name of the Plaintiff corporation. (R. 84).

As noted at the outset of the ruling the Court gave no independent rationale as to why the president did not have the authority to file this suit in the name of the corporation. Rather, the Court based its ruling "on the Pleadings, the Memoranda, and the Affidavits on file herein." (R. 84). Thus, the arguments which the Defendants-Respondents raise to distinguish Kamas Securities take on additional importance; they become the rationale of the Court.

In the lower Court the Defendants-Respondents stated that

"the Kamas case can be differentiated on its facts from the Lloydona vs. Dorius case" and gave three reasons for the differentiation: (1) the powers of the president in each case differed, (2) the irreparable loss present in Lloydona differed from that in Kamas Securities, and (3) the nature of the business in Kamas Securities was different and was controlling. (R. 68). None of these arguments is sufficient to distinguish the Kamas Securities from the case at hand.

A. THERE IS NO DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE POWERS OF THE PRESIDENT IN KAMAS SECURITIES AND THOSE IN THE PRESENT CASE, WHICH WOULD JUSTIFY APPLYING DIFFERENT LAW.

The first reason the Defendants-Respondents cited for distinguishing Kamas Securities was that in the Kamas Securities case the president was "'clothed with management of every department of the company.'" (R. 68). As the Plaintiff-Appellant pointed out in the lower Court (R. 73), there was no finding in the Kamas Securities case that the president of Kamas Securities Co. was "clothed... with the management of every department." 226 P.2d at 115.

As stated in the Kamas Securities case, this quote comes from the case of Greenbay Fish Co. vs. Jorgensen, 165 Wis. 548, 163 N.W. 142, 144. Id. at 115. It was apparently relied upon in Kamas Securities to support the principle from 2 Fletcher Encyclopedia of Corporations, Section 618, that "according to the more modern authorities, the president of the corporation has power to institute suits in its behalf." 226 P.2d at

115 quoting 2 Fletcher Cyc. Corp. Section 618. Contrary to the Defendants-Respondents' assertion that the president in the Kamas Securities case was "clothed with the management of every department," the Kamas Securities decision relies on no such fact. Rather, the Court opinion in this aspect dwells upon the fact that the status of the corporation and the governing board was rather shaky. ("there was a controversy among the directors" Id. at 115.) The focus in Kamas Securities was on the need, which was present for the president to bring the action, not upon the specific powers of the president. The Court's reasoning reflects this.

The Court in Kamas Securities did not attempt to show the president of Kamas Securities was "clothed... with the management of every department" and then conclude that the authority to instigate litigation was his. The Kamas Securities Court looked to the controversy in the corporation and determined that it was in the corporation's best interest that the president be allowed to file the suit. Any attempt to distinguish Kamas Securities from the present action on grounds that the powers granted to the president differed in each case would appear to be very tenuous indeed.

B. THE IRREPARABLE LOSS SUFFERED IN KAMAS SECURITIES IS A UNIFYING, RATHER THEN A DISTINGUISHING POINT, BETWEEN KAMAS SECURITIES AND THE CASE AT HAND.

The second reason presented to the lower Court upon which it could have relied to distinguish Kamas Securities was that "in Kamas the corporation would have suffered 'irreparable loss' in the Courts opinion if action would have been delayed."

(R. 68). The Defendants-Respondents position here apparently comes from the statement in Kamas Securities that " the president in this case was not required to obtain the consent of the Board of Directors, and had he deferred action until such consent had been procured the corporation might have suffered an irreparable loss." 226 P.2d at 115 (emphasis added). An examination of the reasoning and facts behind this position in Kamas Securities demonstrates that the irreparable loss in Kamas Securities was almost identical to that which the Plaintiff-Appellant claims here.

In Kamas, the Plaintiff corporation, through its president, sued the secretary for the unauthorized delivery of collateral held on a note of the corporation. The collateral for the note was delivered by the Defendant to his brother, who was liable on the note prior to the running of the statute of limitations. Because of the running of the statute of limitations on the note, the only means the Plaintiff corporation had to collect on the note was the collateral which it had held in its possession. Id. at 113. Delivery of the collateral by the Defendant to his brother destroyed the right which the corporation had to the collateral and thus their ability to collect on the note. Id. Accordingly, the Plaintiff corporation sued the secretary to make the corporation whole as to the loss of the collateral for the note.

As the foregoing facts demonstrate, the assets which the corporation was trying to preserve in Kamas Securities, the collateral for the loan, had already been lost. There would be no "irreparable loss," in terms of regaining the collateral.

which would result from waiting for a board meeting which would authorize the president to sue. The collateral was already gone.

Likewise, irreparable loss would not be incurred by waiting to sue the secretary of the corporation, as the Plaintiff corporation eventually did. The Court held that evidence showing the Defendant not to be a de jure officer would not effect the Plaintiffs right to recovery. Id. at 115.

Additionally, although there are certainly elements in the Kamas Securities showing that a dispute among members of the board existed, there was no finding by the Court in Kamas that a deadlock, such as that which exists in the instant case was present in Kamas, making it likely that the suit would never be brought and accordingly resulting in the loss of the corporate asset.

In short, in Kamas Securities there was no pressing need, which could be equated with "irreparable loss", that the corporate assets would be imminently endangered if the action of the president was postponed until a subsequent board meeting. The holding of Court in Kamas Securities, as to irreparable loss, therefore appears to refer to the proposition that an "executive officer is not required to wait for formal resolution" if such waiting "might have" the result of the corporation losing its assets. Id. at 115.

As the record demonstrates and the foregoing arguments

affirm, the Plaintiff-Appellant corporation is in precisely this situation. Due to the split of the four directors on the board, there is no possibility of a majority vote to compel the Dorius's to deliver title to the property for which Lloydona has paid. Thus, if the president of the corporation is not allowed to bring a suit at this time it is uncertain what will occur to Lloydona's interest in the property.

Further, any argument that the loss is not irreparable as it could be redressed by a derivative action suit was also dealt with in Kamas Securities. There, this Court specifically stated that "regardless of any findings to the effect that the suit was by a stockholder on behalf of the stockholders, this action was properly instituted by the corporation at the instance of the president." Id. at 115.

Thus, the second reason upon which the lower Court could have relied for distinguishing the Kamas Securities case from the one at hand provides very little substance for departure from that precedent.

C. KAMAS SECURITIES CANNOT BE DISTINGUISHED FROM THE PRESENT CASE ON THE BASIS OF THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS INVOLVED.

The third possible reason offered for distinguishing Kamas is that the nature of the business in Kamas was ideally suited to this type of presidential action. (R. 68). Defendants-Respondents cite no aspect of the Kamas Securities case which makes reference to this contention. There is none.

To conclude, Plaintiff-Appellant's first argument shows

that the Kamas Securities case is aligned with the instant case on all major factual aspects. This argument demonstrates that the arguments of the Defendants-Respondents in the lower Court, upon which the Court must have relied, fail to distinguish Kamas Securities from the action here. Kamas Securities is valid, undisturbed precedent from this Court. The Judgment from the Court below, is directly contrary to that precedent and should be reversed.

III. THE AUTHORITIES UPON WHICH THE LOWER COURT COULD HAVE RELIED PROVIDE NO BASIS FOR THE OVERRULING OF THE KAMAS SECURITIES DECISION.

In the lower Court the Defendants-Respondents attempted to establish that the law in Utah was other than that in the Kamas Securities by citing three sources: (1) general statutory provisions from the Utah Code, (2) encyclopedic references, and (3) a case from the state of New York. (R. 13-16). None of these sources gives sufficient reason to overrule the Kamas Securities holding.

A. THE GENERAL STATUTORY PROVISIONS OF THE UTAH CODE PERTAINING TO CORPORATE MANAGEMENT PROVIDE NO BASIS FOR OVERRULING THE KAMAS SECURITIES DECISION.

The Defendants-Respondents cited the Utah Code Annotated Sections 16-10-33 and 16-10-45. (R. 13,14). These provisions state generally that the Board of Directors should manage the corporation and that the corporate officers should obtain their authority from the by-laws and resolutions of the board. The Plaintiff-Appellant does not dispute these general statements of corporate procedure nor does the Kamas Securities case argue against them. Kamas Securities merely provides the rule for

those unique fact situations where corporate assets are imperiled and action by the president is necessary to preserve them. The statutes in no way give grounds to overturn this Court's prior holding in Kamas Securities.

B. THE ENCYCLOPEDIA REFERENCES PRESENTED TO THE COURT BELOW PROVIDE AN INSUFFICIENT BASIS FOR OVERTURNING PRECEDENT FROM THIS COURT.

The Defendants-Respondents offered the lower Court numerous quotations from encyclopedic references to present its argument that the law in Utah is different from the law as stated by this Court in Kamas Securities. (R. 14-16). Each of these encyclopedic references falls within one of three categories which do not provide appropriate authority for the lower Court to depart from this Court's precedent.

First let it simply be stated that there is a split in the jurisdictions as to the power of the president to bring an action in behalf of the corporation in situations such as these. 2 Fletcher Cyc. Corp., Section 618. The quotations rendered by the Defendants-Respondents in the Court below reflect this. For example, Defendants-Respondents references read "it has been held" 19 Am. Jur. 2d Section 1157, "the strict rule layed down by some authorities" 19 Am. Jur. 2d Section 1169, "there is authority to the effect that" 19 Am. Jur. 2d Section 1190. (R. 15,16).

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