1982

Lloydona Peters Enterprises, Inc. v. Dale M. Dorius and Deloris P. Dorius : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE CORPORATION PRESIDENT, JEAN P. HULL, UNDER THE FACTS IN THIS CASE, IS WITHOUT EXPRESS OR IMPLIED AUTHORITY TO INSTIGATE LITIGATION, EMPLOY COUNSEL, TRANSFER FUNDS AND EXPEND CORPORATE FUNDS WITHOUT APPROVAL AND DIRECTION BY A MAJORITY ACTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

The original contract which was in escrow with the First Security Bank is in the name of Dale M. Dorius and I. Deloris Dorius buying the same from Morgan Investment Company, a Utah Corporation. (R006) A copy of which contract is attached to plaintiff's original Complaint. There evidently was an oral contract as referred to on page 2, paragraph 6 of plaintiff's Complaint that the plaintiff would participate in the purchase of said property. The only Minutes that we have in this are as follows: (October 17, 1978 paragraph 7) (R021) which reads as follows:

"7 - The law office will be paid for in November, 1978. The original purchase price was \$19,000.00. Lloydona paid \$2,500.00 down on it as did Deloris and Dale. Deloris also paid \$500.00 for closing costs from her personal money. The Dorius' to buy Lloydona's portion of the law office. Dale has arranged for a current and independent appraisal through Miller Realty in Brigham and Jean will arrange for an appraisal through a realtor in Ogden. Monthly payment for the office has been \$240.35. The papers concerning the financial agreements between Lloydona and Dorius are in escrow until final payment. Stockholders will receive a copy of the agreement when the final payment has been made and the Dorius' have received the paper from escrow. The building was purchased in December, 1971. After the appraisals have been completed Jean, Gay and Deloris will meet with Dale and decide on a price. They will then contact Joy and confer with her before a final decision is made."

The Minutes of January 30, 1979, (R024) paragraph 5 reads as follows:

"Office building. Jean and Joy requested that copies of the original contract to purchase the office building be clarified and given to members of Lloydona. A lengthy discussion ensued. There was a lengthy discussion as to the recent appraisals obtained for the building, especially by Bruce Christensen. Gay proposed that unless there is a majority vote against, that we accept the \$14,000.00 offer made by Dale Dorius to purchase Lloydona's interest in the office building. It was seconded by Deloris. Two for, two against. Deloris clarified that it was not the intent of the parties involved in the purchase of the building to sell the office building to a third party. All were in agreement to this. Jean proposed that a clarification of the paper work from escrow be made and Joy seconded the proposal. Two for, two abstention. Gay moved that the Christensen appraisal be accepted as a valid appraisal and Deloris seconded it. It was thereafter agreed that it was a valid appraisal by all present."

The corporate Minutes of August 28, 1980 (R030) meeting and the second paragraph thereof reads as follows:

"The Minutes of the last corporation meeting held November 5, 1979 was read by the secretary, Deloris P. Dorius, and the following corrections were made:

Paragraph 7: Two signatures be required on checks by the president and treasurer."

And the further Minutes on said day and particularly paragraph 9, reads as follows:

"Office building - Joy wanted the following written up in the Minutes: Jean and Joy state that the \$14,000.00 should not be distributed as they feel the transaction has not been accepted or is acceptable until additional monies have been received. Deloris wanted the following written up in the Minutes: Gay and Deloris feel that the transaction has been accepted and completed."

The overall picture as shown by these Minutes is that from the very start it was intended that after the building

was paid for that the equity of the corporation would be determined and the Dorius' would pay to the corporation its equity so that the investment that the corporation had made in the matter would be compensated for and the Dorius' would be able to continue to use the office.

As time went on the parties drew apart because of other litigation. Then all of a sudden the plaintiff, Jean Hull, without any notice or without any authority from the corporate officers or without bringing it up or discussing it at any corporate meeting, takes it upon herself, no doubt with the advice of counsel, to draw out \$18,000.00 of corporate money that is on savings at a saving institution, pay her counsel \$2,000.00 as a retainer, deposit with the court the sum of \$15,838.00, no doubt being the \$14,000.00 plus \$1,838.40 interest earned thereon and seek to cancel the settlement of the corporation's interest paid by the Dorius'. There was no attempt at said time to have the property further appraised. If it had been and the new appraisal showed that the corporation's equity was greater than the \$14,000.00 that had been deposited some nearly two years' before for its interest, the amount would have been small and could be easily compromised. There was, however, no demand through the officers of said corporation or an attempt to get the officers of said corporation to have further appraisal and accounting. There was no possibility of a loss to the corporation of any monetary

value. It had received \$14,000.00 and all it could claim would be the difference, if a new appraisal would increase their claimed amount above the \$14,000.00. This was real property, it could not take flight. No attempt had been made by anyone to cloud it's title. The original contract was made in the Dorius' name. The corporation's interest had always been recognized. It was not something that was subject to being outlawed by any statute of limitations in the immediate future. It was something that could be arbitrated and handled if there was any desire on the part of the plaintiff to so do. On the other hand, if Jean P. Hull wished to be malicious and create expense in litigation, then the actions she took would certainly help her to carry it out.

The articles of the incorporation of Lloydona Peters Enterprises, Inc. Corporation vests the corporate authority in the board of directors. The corporation has not adopted By-Laws for the regulation of the internal affairs of the corporation and therefore, is controlled by its Articles of Incorporation and by the Business Corporation Act U.C.A. 1950 Section 16-10-33 reads in part:

" . . Board of Directors - the business and affairs of a corporation shall be managed by the board of directors."

The corporation has managed its affairs since its inception in 1971 by resolution of the board of directors which are each equal shareholders. The president is not in

charge of managing corporate affairs, nor has the president been authorized by the shareholders or directors to instigate said lawsuit. The president, in her Complaint, has not alleged any eminent danger to a corporate right; the property in question having been paid for over two years ago. Further, the nature of the corporation business is not one which would imply a power of the president to instigate litigation.

Utah Code Annotated, 16-10-45 in part states:

"All officers and agents of the corporation, as between themselves and the corporation, shall have such authority and perform such duties in the management of the corporation as may be provided in the bylaws, or as may be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors not inconsistent with the bylaws"

In 10 ALR 2d 705 Section 2 states:

"Thus it would appear that when the management and control of the business is in the directors and no corporate bylaws confers upon the President the power to start suit, there is no implied power in the latter to do so."

Further, 10 ALR 2d 705 Section 3 further states:

"Except for the rule which seems to have been adopted in the case of banks a survey of the cases indicate there is no inherent power in the President of a corporation to instigate litigation on its behalf simply by virtue of his office."

Further, in 1-100 ALR 2d Digest Section 120 Page 453 it states:

"The authority of a corporate President to have litigation instituted by the corporation after refusal of a majority of the Board of Directors to sanction such institution cannot be upheld on the theory that the particular litigation in question represents an emergency or critical situation in the corporate affairs, where there is no allegation or proof of evidentiary facts showing the existence of such a condition."

The case of Sterling Industries vs Ball Bearing Pen Corp., 298 NY 483, 84 NE 2d 790 is directly in point with the case at hand. The Sterling Corporation was formed in 1946, by two groups of men who were to share equally in its control. The bylaws of said corporation contained no reference to any authority on the part of the president or any other officer to instigate litigation. The court held in the Sterling case as follows:

"The question presented for our consideration, therefore, is whether a president of a corporation may institute an action under the circumstances disclosed on the record after he has asked his Board of Directors for permission to do so and it has been refused. We think he may not . . ."

Further, in the Sterling case the Court held:

"We have consistently held that Section 27 of the General Corporation Law, which provides that the business of the corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors, cannot be circumvented."

The President of Plaintiff Lloydona Peters Enterprises, Inc., does not verify her complaint that she is acting under any authority of the Board of Directors.

Also, in 19 Am Jur 2nd Section 1156 on page 584, we have:

"Employment of Counsel. Since the directors ordinarily are the governing body of a corporation, it is generally held, in the absence of some express restrictions in the bylaws, that they have the power to hire and employ counsel on behalf of the corporation . . . However, where the directors were divided into two contesting groups, each attempting to exercise the functions of a Board of Directors, the employment of counsel for the corporation by one faction to recover amounts allegedly due on stock subscriptions and to cancel certain shares without notice to, and in the absence of, the other members was held without

authorization. And it has been held that one of the two directors of a corporation had no power alone, as a director, to enter into a contract for the employment of counsel on behalf of the corporation, to defend it against the stockholders suit for the appointment of a receiver."

Also under Section 1157, page 585 of 19 AmJr 2nd we have in the second paragraph thereof:

"It has been held that one director cannot on his own initiative institute a suit on behalf of the corporation."

Again, in 19 AmJur 2nd, Section 1119, page 555 we have necessity of meeting or collective action, generally.

"As a general rule, the authority of directors or trustees is conferred upon them as a board, and they can bind the corporation only by acting together as a board. A majority of them in their individual names cannot act for the board itself and bind the corporation. In order to exercise their powers they must meet so that they may hear each others views, deliberate and then decide. They must act as an official body."

Again, on the next page and under the same Section, we have:

"As a consequence, a single director of a corporation as such has no power to act in a representative capacity for the corporation; nor has he general authority to make contracts for the corporation, there is no presumption that a contract purporting to be made by him was authorized by the corporation, even though he owns a majority of the corporate stock."

Again in 19 AmJur 2nd, Page 595 under Section 1169 under the title President, we have:

"The strict rule layed down by some authorities is that the President of a corporation has, by virtue of his office, no inherent power to act for the corporation. His authority must be derived from the corporation or Board of Directors, or by statute. According to other authorities the President of a corporation may have certain inherent authority, but it is not clearly

defined and seems to be quite limited, as will readily be seen from a consideration of his inherent power to do particular acts."

Again, in 19 AmJur 2nd, Page 611 under Section 1190 under the heading Conducting or Instituting Litigation we have:

"There is authority to the effect that there is no inherent power of the president of a corporation to institute litigation on its behalf simply by virtue of his office. However there is some authority to the contrary, at least in the case of large business corporations and an exception appears to exist in the case of banking corporations."

Plaintiff and her counsel know because they are now involved in another action with some of the same individuals, which action was claimed to be instituted under Rule 23.1 entitled Derivative Actions by a Shareholder, that she could have filed said action as an individual if she could comply with said Rule 23.1. If she filed under said section, then she would have to file individually as plaintiff, which would give the defendants, which she so named, the right to counterclaim against her personally for any damage that they might sustain if she were in the wrong in filing said action, such as where she has diverted corporate funds, placed them in another bank account under her control and then went out and paid a \$2,000.00 retainer fee to counsel, that she chooses without corporate action, and attempts on her own to rescind a corporate matter that approximately two years ago has been settled. Then on her own initiative, transfers corporate funds into her own

control and deposits a check against said funds under her control with the court. All of said actions by the plaintiff and her counsel are contrary to good law and business practice. Also, the real plaintiff, Jean P. Hull, has no authority, actual or implied, to hire counsel and file said action. That as a result thereof the said Complaint fails to state a claim upon which relief can be granted and the said action should be dismissed.

POINT II

THE CASE OF KAMAS SECURITIES CO. V. TAYLOR, 226 P2d 111 (UTAH) 1950 RELIED ON BY PLAINTIFF HAS NOTHING IN COMMON WITH PLAINTIFF'S ACTIONS.

In the Kamas case we have as principals the defendant Moses C. Taylor, the Kamas Securities secretary who was sued for wrongful surrender to a defaulting debtor (his brother Elliott C. Taylor) 30 shares of bank stock pledged as security for payment of promissory notes executed by the brother, which notes were owned by plaintiff.

The defendant over the years had delayed the corporation and its officers from taking action on the notes until they became outlawed, the last one on January 2, 1942 (page 113 right column).

While the notes had become outlawed and suit could not be filed to collect the amounts due on them the stock given as a pledge did not come under this restraint. (page 113, right column).

In 1946, after discussions had been going on for several months about taking a transfer of the stock and cancelling the debt of Elliot C. Taylor, the defendant was approached by plaintiff's attorney and we have on page 114 right hand column:

"Defendant then informed him for the first time that the stock had been surrendered to Elliott. When asked why, defendant said that the notes had been outlawed by statute of limitations. This suit was commenced in October, 1946, several months after counsel learned of the surrender of the notes. The action was brought in the name of the corporation, and the complaint was verified by A. W. Farr as president."

At this point the stock as pledge had been, without authority, secretly given back to Elliott. It was no longer there to foreclose on and the court said: (Page 115, left column)

"It is true that there was no resolution of the board of directors directing such suit to be filed, but an executive officer is not required to wait for formal resolution of the directors to perform his official duties to preserve the assets of the corporation or to prevent their dissipation."

While this case does not make clear what authority the president A. W. Farr might have had as the executive officer, to carry on this Kamas Security Co. business. One of the cases that was submitted in support of the president's actions makes one believe he had full authority to file the suit which is: (Page 115, right column)

"In Green Bay Fish Co. v. Jorgensen, 165 Wis. 578, 163 N.W. 142, 144, the court declared: "There is no need that express authority to commence such an action should be given by the board of directors to a president who is clothed by the charter or by-laws of the corporation with the management of every department of the company."

In our case there are no by-laws giving the president any power to do what she has done. In the absence of by-laws the state law provides (sec. 16-10-33 and 16-10-45 supra) how the business is to be carried on. Also this little family corporation is dealing with just one investment on a matter involving an equity in real property and it is not in danger of dissipation.

The court again said in the Kamas case (page 115, right column):

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